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CHAPIER VIIL
COITSVILLE."

INTROTIUCTORY.

I'his is tnwnship two of range onc ol the
Connecticut Western Reserve, and forms the ex-
treme northeastern corner of Mahoning coumy,
Coitsville I8 thus bounded : on the noarth by
[lubbard, Trumbull county; on the cast by
Pennsylvania ; on the south by Poland | and on
the west by Youngstown. The rownship con-
tains the little village of Coitsville Center, which,
lowever, is situated a likile south of the geo-

*Malnly from facts ollected by Jubn Shivila,
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graphical center of the township; also a por
tion ol the little mining village knowa as Thom
Hill, now in a condition of decline.

‘The land of the township is excellent for
farming purposes, the sail being generally a deep
and fertile loam. The nearness of Youngstown
gives the farmers the advantage of a ready
market, and as their land is constantly rising 0
value, we find them generally wellcontented
and prosperous,

The surface is quite varable.  In the casiern
and scuthern portions of the tuwnship are a
number of steep hills of ransiderable elevation,
reaching back some distance from the Mahon.
ing river. This streamy cuin across the seuth.
eastern part of the township, and its green banks
and fertile bottom lands here furm some of the
finest natwral sccenery in the whnle county,
From the big hill east of Struthers can be ob.
tained a view of the Mahoning valley surpassing-
Iy rich in s uxtent and beausty.  Busy hamlets
overhung by dark clouds of smoke impress the
spectator with the greatness of the industrics of
the valley; while vast expanses of woaodlarnd, in-
terspessed with many  richly cultivated farms
adurned with fields of waving gmin which sur.
round the comlortable farm bhouses and barns ;
the sleek cawtle grarzing m the meadows; the
buxy farmers in theiv com-ficlds, or driving along
the roads with wagons hcavily ladea with the
fruits of their toil, all show that the agriculiural
rommunity is as thrifty and as active as the
manufacturers.  Could one of the men who in
1798 entered this beautful valley and found it
as silent and as wild as ever primeval forests
were, its solitude invaded only by the prowling
savage, the stealthy beasts of prey or flocks of
hirds—could such 2 one now nse from his years
of sleep in the prave and behold this busting
scene, his aswmishmient, sorprise, and amaze-
ment wonld doubtluss equal the feclings of Rip
Van Winkle on his return to his former home,

Excepting the Mahoning, the streams in this
township are small and unimporam  Dry run
pursues a winding coutse and drains a consider-
ablc portion of the surface.  Other small sireams
arg puMerows,

Coal has been mined te some extent in former
veats, but at prosent no mines of importance
are in operation. Lhorn Thil and vicinity formied
a busy mining community, but the banks were
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deserted for other and more promising ones not
situated in Coitsville. Agricultore is the main-
stay and support of nearly all the inhabitants of
the township,

PURCHASE AND SURVEY.

Previous to the year 1798 Daaniel Coiy, of the
State of Connecticut, purchased from the (‘on-
nectickt land company township number two in
the first range, and gave to it the name of Coits-
ville, 1t does not appear that he ever became
a resident of the township, but anthorized
Simon Perkins, of Warren, to act as his genera!
agent.

ln 1798 Mr. Coit sent on a party tu sarvey his
land and put it in the market  John Partridge
Bissel was the chiefl survevor and alsa the sub-
agent jur the sale of the land,

ORGANIZATION AND FIRST ELECTION,

In 1806, December gih, the following wns

given at Warren, Trumbuh county:

ORBERED. Ly the board of commissicaces {ur the county of
Trumbiol, that number o, in the Gyl range of wownships
in aaid cobary, be sct off a3 A separate wnihlp by the
name of (ojtsvitle, with all e rights, privileges, aad im-
manitizs by taw given to and Inv=sed ln any towaship in this
State, hod thie Giust meetiog of sad towmhip dull be held au
the hawie formety occupwd by John P Hiseel, in sud wwn-
shupr.

Al : WILLIAM AW 1MOKE,

Cleck Commissionos pry £,

Uhe first election was held Apeil 6, A D.
1807, Alexander M 'Guffey, chairman, John John-
son and Joseph Jackson, judges of the election.
'I'he following officers were chosen: Joseph
Bissel, township cletk; William Huston, Joseph
Jackson, and William Stewart, trustees; Joha
M'Call and Timothy Swan, overseers of the
poor; Wiliiam Martin and Ebcnezer Corey, su-
perwisars of highways; David Coaper and John
Stewart, fence viewers, James Sicwart and Alex-
ander M'Guffey, appraisers of houses; Alexander
M'Guffey, lister; James Lynm, constable; John
Johinson, treasurer.

INTERESTING TOWNSHIP RECORDS

The records of the township for a few years
following its organization show a aumber of in-
teresting facts.  Here is one which we copy from
Towship Record Hook Na, 1, page ¢8:

AL a mecting of William Huston, Jeacph Jachan, and
Wilkam #ew irt, Irisdees fur the tawaship of Coltavitle, at
the daclling buuse of Jureph Hivael of said (own, on Apwil
27, 1808, ordoriyd, thiat ey ory prasun subject to pay 3 caunly
L0, according (u the act pasved by the (loneral Assrembly of
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the 3tate of Ohin, [reormbor =y, 1807, 1o lall (et sywirreds,
und in adilition tu the tam sipuireels, mct prran to kil teo
squirreks for each cow st four fur cach harse, and il a per-
sup hasz byt oue caw she ia exemg,

Attest Jasereg BIHSEL,

Tawnship iTerk

Same page :

Aty rmeetlng of the imhaliutunts june 27, 188 voted that
the squirred avt be vontinued to the sat dav of Auvzmsl e,
before reruns are made w the colleetor of county taves

Attest . fosemn Bissye,

Towazhip k-
There are several records made of warning
poor peaple, likely to become township charges,
ta quit the township.
TAXES IN 1803.
From ancient recards we learn that the entire

amount of taxes asscssed upon Coitsville in the
year 1803, was $14.95 A copy of the list is

given.
COITAVILLE, RANGE DNI, FOMS ONE
Amonng Amonnt
af wax. of s,
Auguatine, Danlel, . § ¢ 357 Pauley, James,, ... .5 0 65
Rlssell, Jaseph.. . 71 Robh, Matthew b
Couper, Dratd., . bu  Shehy Roger firy
Cagper, Cramer, 86 Sterlés. Jamer . i
Flich, Aodrew _, .. o1 Smilh), James | ETe)

(iiven, Jabn. .. 32 Stewart, Wilkam Jr 1)
Glllan,  Matthew . as Thempson, John Jr. 81
Honaton, Wiklzsia, 6; Thumpaon, Geosge 70
Harris, Mamabas. . . 1@ Weeks, Witiam to
Lovatand, Amas, | .. 1 50 Wilson, Robert,,, ., a2
Mecrs, James, . . ao Wilsan, Phanicl,, . jo
Martin, Wiiliam ... .. 20 Whiw, fames. . ... o0
= ?’Mu(]uﬂ’cy. Alexsoder g White. Fronoa 24
McBride, Samuel. 45 Welch, James . .. 20
Mctall, John, . ..., 3
I'atter, Joba...., ..-. =0 Touwl,, $1§ 3%

FARLY SETTLERS.

To Amas lLoveland belongs the honor of
having madc the hrst pertnanent settlement in
the township. He was a Kevolutionary soldier
and served three years,  He came to Coitsville
in the spring of 1798, joinced the surveying party
and spent the summer assisting them.  [n the fll
he returned to his home in Chelsea, Orange
county, Vermant, haviag purchased all the land
in Coitsville situated on the south side of the Ma-
honing—a tract of four hundred and twenty-six
acres, mostly level, rich, and fertile. In December,
1798, with his wife and six children, he left
Chelsea for his ncw home, Mr. Loveland started
from Vermont with two sleighs lsaded with bed-
ding, furniture, farming utensils, cte., each sleigh
being drawn by two horses  They traveled in

| daughters.
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this way until they reached the Susquchanna,
which they crossed on the jce at Whitestown ;
the snow disappearing soon after, Mr. oveland
tradud his sleighs for a wagon, transicrred his
goods into it and continued his journey,  April
4. 1799, he arrived with his tamily upon his farm.
They began honsekeeping in a small log cabin
which be had erccted the previvus year.  This
cabin was ahowt eighteen feet square; it had no
plass windows, and its door was made of clap-
boards with two sticks acrass, two of them being
hinges fastened hy wooden pins,  Not a nal had
been vsed in the cansiruction of this dwelling
A puncheon or split log floor covered about half
the ground included within the log walls,  There
was no upper floor, and no chimney except a
stone wall bwilt up about five feet 10 keep the
fire from the logs. In this cabin, of course with
the addition of some improvements, the fumily
lived six vears, and then erccted o farger and
more convenient one,

Diyring the frst year the family depended
largely upon the results of hunting for their food,
with gecasional supplies obtained from the few
acighboring settlements.  Mr. Laveland cleared
up his farm and resided upon it until his death,
which occurred at the age of ninety. Mrs. Love-
land died when ninety-three.  Her maiden name
was Jemima Dickerson.  The lovelands were
the first family in the vownship, and to them were
born the first inale, as well as the first female
child harn in Coitsville.  Cynthia Loveland was
born in June, 1799, and dicd in 1815, Her
brother David, born a year ar two later, was the
second child born in the towoship. He spent
the whole of n long life upon the old homestead,
and his heirs still own some theee hundred acres
of the oiiginal farm. Ehzabeth Loveland, one
of the daughters, became the wife of William *
McFarlin and the mother of six sons and six
She dicd Junc 16, 1881, aged ninety
vears, ten months and nine days. She enjoyed
the distinction of being a resident of the Western
Reserve longer than any ather person, having re-
sided continuausly in the Mahoning valley over
eighty-two years.

John P. Bissel, the survevor of 1798, pur-
chased a farm including the center of the town-
ship, made a clearing, and built a log-cabin. In
t8oo he emigrated from his home in Lebanon,
Connecticat, with his family, consisting of three

[e
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sons and six daughiers, and setiled on hus pur- | Fenasylvania, and settled on section eleven pre-
chase.  The family remained in Coitsville until | vious to 18c2. He brought up ten children,

1805 or 1806 when they removed tu Youngs
town in order that the children might have
better school advantages, Mr. Bissel was the
first acting justice of the peace in (lostsville.
He died in 181v. His daughter Mrs. Mary
Kyle resided upon the old homestead from the
time of his father's death until her own,  She
died in (880, in the cighty-third year of her age.

Asa  Mariner, then a single man, was one of
the surveying party,  In 3798 he purchased a
farm a little northwest of the center of the town-
ship, upon which he scttled in 1800 He mar
ried Sully Beggs and reared a numerous and
respectable family,  This couple lived to a good
old age, honored and respected.  Mr, Mariner
was a member of the Disciple church, his wite
of the United I'reshbytenan. The old farm is still
in the possession of two of the sons, Major
James Manner and his brother lea.

Rev. William Wick was a pioneer of Cuoitsville.
He was a native of Long Istand, New York, but
came to this county fram Washington county,
Pennsylvanta,  September 1, 179g, he preached
a sermon in Youngstown, said to have been the
first sermon preached on the Reserve.  About
18301 he purchased a farm on the State linc
which is now occupied by the Beggs famyily. My,
Wick was ordained a preacher of the gospel by
the Presbytertan church and installed pastor of
the cangregauons of Voungstown and Hopewell,
now Bodiord, P'ennsylvania. Al the Coitsville
Presbyterians of the old school attended his
church.  1le continued in his relation as pastor
umti! death called him home {n 1815, He was
a very papular preacher and was instrumental in
persuading persons of woral and religious char-
acter to seitle o Coirsalle,  During his pas-
torate he preached fitteen hundred and twenty-
twa sermaons and solemnized sixty-nine marnages
He was the father of eight sons and live daugh-
ters, O this family eleven lived to matuee age,
Some of his sons attained some enmnence in the
poliacal world,  William was Secretary of State
in Indiana and James a judge of the cournt of
comman pleas in Meroer connty, Pennsylvania,

The family were noted for being fine singers |

and proficiens i prenmanshap,
Rarney Hurris, the first blacksauth e Coits
ville township, came from  Washington county,

three sons and seven daughters. George, the
vnly son now living, resides with his family in
lowa. “Three daughiers with their families still
in this vicinity,  Mrs, Harris was a daughter of
Andrew Por, noted for his encounter with an In-
dun near Georgetown, on the Chio river. M.
A, B. Wilson, a grandson of Barney Harris, re-
sides on the old Harris farm.  David Wilson
came Mrom Washington county, Pennsylvania, in
1803 or 1804 He had two sons and three
daughters.  Of this number only one son, DNavid,
is now living- -a resident of Kedfoid, Pennsylva-
nta,  Mr. Wilsen was o wheelwnght by trade.
In early years the little spinning-wheel was an
indispensable article in every household, and Mr.
Wilson engaged in its manufacture, and for many
years pave employment to several men in his
shop, where he made wheels, reels, and coffins,
The improvements made in spinning machinery
as ime progressed destroyed one branch of this
business, but he continued the undertaking bus-
iness for many years. Mr. Wilson erected a
grist mill to be run by ox power, but after a few
years' trial it was pranounced a failure and sban-
doned, ke erected o brick house in 1815,
which is still occupied by his descendants.
Alexander Mctiufley and family moved from
Washinglon county, Pennsylvania, to Coitsville
in about the year 1800. His father and mother,
who were natives of Scotland, also came with
him, The family were zealous Presbyterians,
Alexandur was a farmer, aud seitled near Sand
Hill,  His son, Rev. William McUiufley, became
widely known as the author of a series of school
books known as Mec(uffey's Eclectie Readers,
William was brought to Coitsville in infancy,
His mother an exrellent woman—used to de-
light in reconnting the hardships they endured
during the hrst years of thuie residence here,
and how she used to place William in a sugar
trough while she assisted her husband in clcaring
up the farm.  William reccived his common
schonl education in Coitsville, the writer of these
sketrhes bemg one af his schoolmates.  Out
schoal-house was a cabin buill of round logs, sit-
nated at the corners of the forms now aceupied
by Fhowas Biownlee, Rev. H. 5. Boyd, AL Wil-
son, and Ambrose Shields.  Willlam McGuffey
afterwards taught schoal tn the same place. He
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began the study of the dead languages under
John MeCready, wha taught a sclect school near
Pulaski, Mercer eounty, Pennsylvania, in 1837
completed his college course und graduated rom
the college at Oxfurd, Ohio. He wis licensed
as a preacher by the presbytery, but was never
the setiled pastor of any congregation.  Instead,
he devoted his life to the advancement of edu-
cation, He died in s seventy sixth ycar at the
residence of his daughter in Dayton, Ohio.
But his memory will be long perpetuated by his
works,  William McGuffuy was a man of genial
temperament, n pleasant and affable speaker,

Mavid and Rebeeca (Armstrong) Cooper sct-
tled in the township in 1800, Five of their
children atill reside in Coltsville. He was a na-
tive of Maryland; his wile of Pennsylvania
Mr. Cooper was 2 member of the surveying
party of 17¢8.

James Lynn settled early on sectian cleven.
His farm is now the Dalby farm. About the
same Gime with him John Johnson settled on
scction ten,

Sampson Mocre, about 180z, setiled on sec
tton ten.  Me lived and died in this township,
and brought up his family here.  None of his
sons Lecame settbers of Coitsville, -

William, James, John, and IXasid Stewart
came here at differeny dates, All were early
settlers.  David settled west of the village.
William, James, and John toek up farms in the
nosthwestern quarter of the townshipn, David
Stewart, son of William, lives on his father's
old place.  Robert Stewart, son of William,
lives on section three. John and James set-
tled near William. M. Rush owans a pare of
James' farm, and the Grays a part of John's.

Thomas Early was amony the first settlers in
the western part of the township. The Fitch
family, elsewhere mentioned, were among the
early settlers on the Mahoning,

David DBrownlee, his parents, and his sster
Margaret, were carly scttlers near the south line
of the township. John Brownlee, who lives
near the Pennsylvania line, is a son af David.
‘The family consisted of ten children, of whom
three sons and one daughter are still tiving,
John being the oldest.

Maithew Robb was an early settler on the
William Price farm. He aftierwards sold this
and built where Mr. McCartney lives.

107

Daniel Augustine, a sober, industrious, hanest
German, settled in the township w0 (802, His
{amily is still well representedt in this wwaship.
It 15 related of him that he was once oflenud
$15 for a cow which he had for sale. He re.
fused the price; said that $13 was all that she
was worth, and all he was willing to wake.

Willam Belt wos an early settler in the north-
east of the township, lived and died here,
Some of his sons remained for a time, then
nwved away, One, John Mnson Bell, lived
upon the old place until his death,

ia the same neighborhond was Ehenezer (lo-
rey, whose family are all gone from the town-
ship,

A man named Thompson was an early settler
on Ambrose Shields' arm.  He sold to Timo-
thy Swan, who lived and died there

Joscph and Macy (Goe) Beges, natives of Ire-
fand, settled in Coitsville, west of the villayge, in
1802. Their san, James Heggs, Esq,, horn June
17, 1799, is still a resident of the township, Jo-
seph Fleggs was a soldicr of 1812,

John Johnson, from Mercer county, Pennsyl-
vanin, settled in the eastern part of the town.
ship in 1803 He mamied Jane Caldwell, of
Beaver county, Pennsylvani, and brought up a
family of nme children,  Only two are now liv-
ing, Sanmtel in lowa, and John in this township,
David Johnson, ane of his tamily, died in April,
1881,

James Shields, a native of lreland, came ta
Coitsville in 1803 and purchased 2 farm of two
hundred and thirty acres east of the village. The
smne year he marned Margaret Walker. He
died in 185y aged eighty years. He reared three
sons and five daughters, all of whom settled in
Coitsville and had families, except one daughter
whao died young.  All of the original family are
now dead excepting John, the oldest son, and
James, the youngest. The latter resides in
Loveland, Colorada  James Shields, Sr., huilt
and operated the first distillery in the township.
It was crected in 18a3.  He operated it for a
few years, but not fincing the business profitatile,
sold out and thencefarth devoted himself 1o em-
poyments more nseful and henefieinl. ) Ammi
R and Prudence (Burraws) Biszel settled o little
notth of the village in 1806, Their son, Partridge
Bissel, born in 1803, #s still a resident of the
tawnshipn  Ammi Hissel was a brother of John

-
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I, and ¢nme from Vermomt. He was the father
of five sons and twa daughters. He was the fiesi
carpenter in the tawnship, and was energetic and
active in his work. He was a good ncighbor
and an henest man,

The Widow McFarlin (=ee Margery Anderson)
cattee to this toweship from Ireland aboat the
year 1804, with a fomilv of four sons and two
danghters, all of whom married after coming
here,  Isabel, the oldest, marvied James McGill;
Mary married Robert McKean, scttied in Ells-
worth and died there; Alexander settled south of
the center of Coitsville.  He was accidenually
killed by the falling of o tree.  He had seven
sons and twou daughters, most of whom settled in
this vicinity, William settled on the top of the
hill on thee Hazelton road. He reared a laige
famify. Elcven children arnived at vears of ma-
tunity. But one sen is living, Anderson, at Coits-
ville. Four of his daughters are Tiving, viz:
Mrs. Lydia Mahan, Liberty, Trumbuall county;
Miss  Jemima McFarlin, Niles; Mrs. Matilda
Price, Cuitsville, and Mrs, Lavina Harris, Voungs:
town. .Andrew setthed in the somthem part of
the township, but later moved 10 Indiana and
died. He had a large family.  His sons ate all
dead. Several danghters are living in Indiana,
James settled on the coad leading west from
the village nnd died there,.  He had several chil-
dren, nene of whom remain.

The first shoemaker, Stephen Allerton, came
froan New Jetsey, and settted south of the cven-
ter, early in this century,  He was honest and a
good neighbor, [t intemperate in his habits.

‘The first tailor was John [Porter, a very early
gettler, He was a good citizen, and a strict
Preshyterian.  Mis farmn was on the Hubbard
and Lowell road.  Tle had a large family, bLut
not a branch of 0 remains here at the present
day.

The oldest man in this township s Alexander
Begzs, born in Ireland abour the year 1789,
He settled i Costsville in 1822,

The first marriage ceremony was performed
abont 1803, uniing Fhenzer Corey and Folly
‘Thompsan in the bonds of wedinek.

The fiest death was that of an infant son of
John It Bissel, and oecureed in 1800,

HAKI TEMES.

The year 1313 Lrought hard times for many

of the ploncers of Coitsville,  Nre Bissel  died

in that year,  His financial affaits were found in
a bad condition, which brought disaster to many
of those who had purchased their lands from
him.  Some had paid for their lands, received
their  deeds, and were, consequently, safc,
Others who had not got their lands paid for and
received their titles were caught up.  No matter
how much they had paid, all fared alike and re-
ceived a small percentage on the money which
they had peid. The land had 1o be re-purchased
or abandoned. It woas supposed, had he lived
10 settle np his own affairs; the result would bave
been different.  Another canse of discourage-
ment was a series of very rainy seasons, which
flonded the low, fla lands, and caysed them to
be unproductive,  This caused a bad report to
be put inte circulation concerning the town, and
many emigeants to pass us by,  Again, the War
of 1812 was upon us, and many of the men
subject to do mibtary doty were drafited or val-
untecred, and went into the service, There were
few left at home except women and childeen,
old nen, cripples, and invalds,

Farwers, who had spent years of hard labor
upon their lands, were asked to give them up.
At many a fireside there was dejection and  de-
spondency. Some men obandoned their claims
and left. Others exchanged their tarms for other
property; but a majority withstood their dificul-
tes and trials.  Many of those who had lest
their lands made new contracts for them, and
succeeded, finally, in retaning them.

In a few vears the dark clond broke and
passed away, ‘The felds yielded good crops,
and there was an abundance of food for man
and beast,  ‘The war werminated, and the Coits-
ville soldiers came home withow the loss of a
man, it is believed,  If there had been wourn-
ing there was now rejoicing,  The claiws for the
re-puichased farms were lignidated, the fee sim-
ple titles on record, and soon every farm had its
oceupant, and vacant lots were no more to be
found in the township.

HIGHWAYA.

The hest public highway laid out in this town-
shipp is the cast and west rozd, known as the
Mercer and Youngstown raad. It is one-half
mile south of and paralle] to the east and west
center line, It was established and opened in
1802, Soon after that date the road kmawn as
the Yellow Creek road, leading frum Poland vil-



TRUMBULL AND MAHONING COUNTIES, OHIO.

lage to Hubbard, was oprned through the town-
ship. In (827 the Yaungstown and Mercer road
became a post-raad from New Tedford, Pennsyl-
vania, westward.

ENCOUNTER WITH A BEAR.

Patrick Thampson, in 1803 or 1804, was re.
turning home from Youngstown, and stopped at
J. P. Bissel's to transact some business which
detained him ontil near cvening, when he pro-
ceeded toward home. \When he arrived on the
farm of Josiab Dalby, ncar the State ling, he
discovered a cub bear in his path.  Determin-
ing to make its acquaintance, and it offering no
violent opposition, he took it vp in his arms,
It, however, soon became dissatisfied with his
nursing, and with loud cries notified its mother ;
she, being within hearing distance, hastened to
its rescue with mouth open and bristles up,
Thompsan seeing that a fight was imminent
strave to get rid of his new aciquaintance. Bt
cub refused to break up (ricndly relations so
abruptly and clung to his azm with a regular bear
hug, After some effort he loosed its grip, and
to use his own language, he *threw the little
devil into its mother's face.”

The battle now began, and Thompsen seeing
his danger of defeat attempted to climb a tree
near by, but as often as he began to ascend
the bear would catch him by the feet and pull
him back, and with such eoergy did she make
her attacks that she tore the bottoms from his
shoes, and so lacerated his feet that he was
cver afterward a cripple, although he lived many
years after this event.  Up 10 this ume victary
scemed to be on the sile of the bear; o
few more crunches at his feet and she would
have had it all her own way. Bul fortunately,
at this juncture, Mr. Thompson obtained a

large splinter, and again making the attempt to I'

clisub the tree she again made for him, He
made a drive at her with the splinter, and
luckily sent it deep into anc of her nastrils.
She then resolved to have a truce umtil she
could get rid of the spliner; she would strike it
with one paw, then with the other, until she
effecred her purpose. Ry this time friend
Thompson was high in the tree, and neither
party was disposed to renew the fight.  Bruin
soon retired with 8 sore nose,  Thompson be-
came faint from luss of blood. It was now in
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squeczed the water from  his linen hunting shirt
into his mouth, which revived him somewhat,
His hallooing was heard at the house of the
Rev. Mr. Wick, and they came to his relief.
When they arrived the bear and her faily bad
lefi. This was the only known encoonter with
a wild bear in this township.
THE STRUTHERS TRAGEDY.

In February, 1826, Miss {hucilla Struthers
feft her father's residence 1a Coitsville for the
purpose of going to the postoffice at Poland
village, where she expected to get a letter from
her affianced lover, then residing in Washington
county, Pennsylvanin, Her younger sister,
Eanmn, accompanied her down to the Mahoning
river, which was very high at that time, intend-
ing to feery her across, and then retwrn home

| T'he skiff in which they were to cross was fastened

nearly opposite the mouth of Velluw creek, and
directly apposite 10 the present village of Struth-
ers.  'The young ladics were daughters of John
Struthers, wha settled in Poland township in
1799, held the office of sheriff of Trumball
coutity, and other responsible offices, and was
well known and respected by the pioncers of this
county. ‘They weresisters of the Flon, Thomas
siruthers, who was the proprietor of the thriving
village of Struthers,

When the young ladics cume to the bank of
the river Emna taid off her shawl and bonnet
on the shore, and they embarked on their fatal
voyage. Emma was good with an oar, and prac-
ticed in rowing and managing a skifl.

At this puint the known history of their lives
ends. Tt is imvalved in mystery that can not be
anraveled.  No human eye saw them on their
fatal voyage, as they were not spared to relate
the events of that awful hour, of what happened
or bufell them ; why they were unable to propel
their craft across the stream ; what were their
feclings and actions when they  discovered their
dangerous and belpless situation ; how many
plans they devised ta repain a londing; how hope
and despair alernated each other in quick sue-
cession ; how their terrors increased us their dis-
appointments were repeated ; and as they ap-
proached the dam over which they were soon to
be precipitated how their souls sank withio them,
when they beheld the foaming waters Leneath
them and hope gone; what thoughts agitated

the night. A heavy raio cominencing to fall, he ‘ their souls as they made the fatnl descent, ther
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craft overturned, and the dork waters received
them,

Alexander Cowden heard their cries, hut did
nat apprebend at the time that they came from
persons in distress.  David Brownlee reported
having crossed the river a short time previous in
that skiff, and that one of the oars or rawlocks
was defective in some way, which doubtless was
the cause of the disaster.

When they were missed an ‘active search was
commenced. The nest day the remains of Dru.
cilla were found fastened to a bush which prew
on the river bauk, one and one-half miles below
where they embarked.  Six woeeks elapsed hefore
the bady of Emma was  discoverad, It was
found a1 the head of an bland near the Dickson
farm,

Mr J. R. Cowden has favared us with the
above facts. He was one of the searching party
from the frst and wntil the body of Emma was

found.

RETIGICGUS HISTORY.

A majority of the early settlers of Catsville
were church-going people, yet there was no
church edifice erected in the township until
1838. The inhabitants went to church in two
different States, Ohiv and Peansylvania ; in four
diferent countics, Teum il and Mahoning in
Oho, Lawrence and Mercer in Pennsylvania ;
and in eight different townships, Coitaville, Do
land, YVoungstawn, Liberty, and Hubbard in
Ohio, and Shenango, Pulaski, and Mahoning in
Pennsylvania. Many still continue members of
churches in these variosa places,  The Method-
ists for some years held tnectings in bacns,
sthoal-honses and dwellings,  In 1835 they of
fected an arganization, James MeKinley, class
leader.  This organieation touk place afer a
series of revival weetings held in Tobins Kime
ball’s barn, in which Revs Green, Preston, and
othiers taok pact.  They had no cliurch boilding
until 18338, Then Isaise Powers, late of Yanngs
wwn, proesented 1o the saciety a ot of land for
o chureh site and cematery, the lot lying on the
old Yonngstown and Bediord road, where the
Poland tmturseets it John Bissel and
James McCanney were very dctive in securing
fonds  with which 10 boild and conipiete the
muecting hoase. James MeCartney,  Abriliam
Javnbs, and John Bisscl were the rst trustees,
Lpon this Iand, deeded to the socicty in 1830,

ruadk

the house was erected ; and a living, working
congregation worshiped there in peace and unity.
But when the agitation of the slavery question
sttuck this little band, division and bitterness
cante with it Troubles increased until in 1847
some Godless incendiary applied a torch to the
vhurch, and it was destroyed,  The guilty wretch
lies never heen detected.  [n 1848 a new build-
ing, was erected npon the same site, superior to
the old in styleand finish, and there the Methed-
ist Episcopals continue ta hold their zervices.

The Preshyierians orgamized a congregation in
1836. A commodious ¢difice was erccted at the
village in 1836 or 1837, and Rev. William Nes.
bit became pastor.  John Jackson and John
Lypn were elected ruling elders, and scon after
‘Thomas McGeehan and Geotge Harris were
elected, and their namies added to the session
roll.  Mr. MeGechan is the only member of the
original sesston now lefi, and he s nearly fow-
score years of age. Since Mr. Neshit, wha re.
mained several years, 3 number of clergymen
have officiated as stated preachers : Revs. Dick
son, \cCombs, Thabbins, Kerr, Price, McCrea-
dy, and Rice. The present incumbent is Rey.
Krush ; the present session, Thaomas McGeehan,
Guurge Gray, and Joseph Hanna.  The roll of
communicants shows twelve males and twenty-
five females. s it not a guestion warthy of aur
consideration whether the above peoportion of
tuales and females will hold good in tleaven as
well as here?

In 1870 the old house was taken down and
rebuilt in bewter style, and in a more substantial
manner. The consttution of this church is
dated 183y, and to it are autached the names of
Wiliiam Reed, John and Davis Jackson, |
[. Hirst, George Harns, Saimuel Jackson, Af-
drew Mclarlin, LEbenezer Corey, and James
Kerney.

Of the early settlers the Lynns, Swans, |ohn-
suns, Moores, Marting, Bells, Coreys, Monteiths,
Mordocks, Jacksons, and Wicks were Preshyte-
gians; the Allens, Stewarts, Coopers, Houstons
Milligans  Duepgses, Ihcksons, McGuffeys, Me
Brides, Reeds, Thompsons, and others were
United Presbyterians; the McCartneys, Dissels,
Kirks, Kimmels, Vails, McFarins, Jacohses,
and othurs were Methodist BEpiscopal Vanous
other denominations were also represented by
Contsyille people.
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THE FIRST MARRIAUE

in the township was that of Ebencecr Uorey and
Polly Thompson, about the year 1803, 'The
wedding lestival took place in and about a litle
log cabin, which was standing until within a few
years, on the farm of Ambrose Shiglds, This
couple lived together nntil three children were
bern. Then the husband died. The widow
afterwards married James Crooks and had a
large family.
FARLY SCHOOLS

The first schoot in Cutesville was taught in a
log cabin on the farm of Joseph Beggs early in
the present century. The cabin was a shon dis-
tance west of the center. feremiah Hreaden,
the tather of Dr. Breaden, was the tencher,
Many of the schulars resided at a lang distance
from the school-house. There were few roads,
and many were guided through the woods by
blazed trces. Some of the members of thar
school were afterwards representatives to the
Legislature ; David Houstun being one of this
number.

The Airst school-house proper, was a little log
twilding, damp and uncomfortable. It was
situated in the northeastern part of the wownship,
and was ballt about 1807 or 1808. The only
branches taught were reading, writing, and arith
metic. The Hikle wasthe class book for reading.
The more advanced pupiis read in the ONd Testa:
ment and were called the Bible class. The
youngcr readers used the New Testament.  The
Bible, Webster's Spelling-book, and Welsh's
arithmetic, were the only text-boaks.
sholar had mastered the rule of three bis edu-
cation was constdered finished, thaugh some of
the boys did not stop when they had aceom-
plished this mach, but finlshed the hook. The
old log school-house was removed about 1815
and replaced by a comfurtable (rame house,
which was used tor school purposes until de-
stroyed by fire, about tha time the State Logisla
ture taok our schaols under its protection.

Several other school-hovses were built and
used in the towaship, bul npone were so pertug-
nent as the Hareis school. In winter inale
teachers taught and were paid by assessing a cer
tin rate per scholar. Summer schools were
usually taught by ladies whose wages were naised
by volantary subscriptions. The township 19 now

When a |
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divided tnto seven schoul districts, and is well
supplicd with good school-houses,
MILLY,

T'he first saw-mill in the township was erected
hy Asa Maniner, one and oncfourth miles north-
wes of the ceater, on Iy run. There was also
a corn-cracker run in connection with the saw-
mill.

The next mill was the McFarhn mill in the
south of the township. The building of mills
continued umil there were seven saw-mills in
eperation on Dry run, all propelled by its waters.
Bur as the lands were cleared the water of the
stream diminished, the mills became less usefat
cach year, until all were abandoned. 1o later
years steam saw-mills ook the place of the old
water mills, There have been ten of these op-
crated in the township at different tines and
places. Now there are but two,

There was a good grist-mill vrected by Asa
Marinet, but it departed with the old saw-mills,
There have been three mills in the 1ownship
which were run by harse- or ox.power—Wilson's,
Buchavan's, and Brownlee's —but they were in
vperation Gut a short time,

DISTILLERIES.

tHere, as clsewhere, distilling was considerably

| uarried on in carly times. James Shields had the

first distillery.  Seven others were aiterwards
built, some of them of little importance; buot
four of them, namely, Loveland’s, Brownlee's,
William McFarlin's, and James McFarlin's,
pushed their business with encrgy for some years,
consunting abuut twenty-four bushels of grain
daily at least one hundred and fifty days out of
the year, thirty-six boadred bushels per annum,
and putting npon the market ning thousand gal-
lons, more or less, of ardent apirits.
MORALS

Never was a drinking saloon in Coltsville suc-
cessfully operated. A fuw attemjis wete made
to stast them, all resuiting in failare, except in
the nofthwest part of the township in a linle
nmening village.  When the coal was duyg out the
minets Jeft, and the grog-shops failed for want of
CHSLOMCrS.

No one was ever accused of murder here ex-
cept William ©. Muoore, who was tricd and found
puilty of murdering his sister-in-law, Sarah Siow-

| art, and sentenced to Swate prizon for Iife.  The
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beginning of the trouble was the viclation of the
seventh commandment.  Moore served 2 num-
bier of years in prison, then was sent home to
dic of consumptiun.  Cortrary to expectation,
he grew fat and enjoyed his Tiberty some years.
Escept Moore only one other persan has cver
been sent to the penitentiasy fram this township.
He wae a tramp and horse thicf, naned Fait-
brother, and had been in Coitswille only a few
months.
RURIAT PLACES,

The cemetery near the Methodist chureh was
located in 1836 or 1837, ‘I'he first interment
was that 6l a son of John Bissel, 1 merchant at
the village. This burial was made in 1837,

The cemetery adjoining the Presbyterian chureh
at the village was gutten up by private enterprise.
Samuel Jackson purchused a picee of graund
and donated it w the church for Lurial purposus

1878
/~ The remains of most of the old scttlers of
Coisville are buried in the Decr Creck Church
cemetery, New Bedford, Pennsylvania,

THE VILLAGL,
Coitsville bas two stores, two wagon shops,
two blacksmith shaps and a 1annery. ‘There is
at present no hotel.  Andrew Mclarlin ket the
fiest hatel, the “ Temperance house,” some years
John Missel had the first store in the place in
in 1831 or 1832,

The carriage works of M. D, P. Caoper are
worthy of special mention.  Yhe proprietor is a
young man of enterprise, and seems detenmned
1o win success. e is nircady doing a very good
busincss,

FARLY JUSTICES OF THE PEACE.

Jobn P Bissel, 1D Manteith, Wilkam Hous:
ton, and James Shiclds were jusuces of the prace
previows to 18¢8.

POSE DFFICE.

The fist post toad from New Bedford, Peun-
sylvania, to Youngstown was e dablished in 1829,
Mal was rereived onee a week  William Bissel
was appointed  postmaster at Coitsville;  Jobn
Shiclds, Andrew  Mctarlin, James  Milligan,
Thomas McGechan, David Jacksan, and An-
derson MeFarlin were his successars in office,
Mrs Joseph Hanna is the  present incumbent.

VANNFRIES,
The first taniery was operated by David

1
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Shields, It was a filure and was soon aban-
doned. In 1832 William Stewant and R, W,
Shields commenced the business at the vil
lage and the tannery started by them has been
successfully operated up to the present time.
Mr. Stewart became owner by purchase of Mr,
Shields’ interest in 1855, n February, 1875,
the building was destrayed hy fire together with
a large amount of stock and the machinery, the
lass amounting to about $5.000. A new and
much laiger building haa been erected, 86 x 40
feet and two stories high, and Mr. Siewart is
doing a good business in company with his san
I U, Stewart.
INCIDENTS OF THE t312 WaR.

Willians Crawford, who had first setcled in the
northeast of the township, was drafted into
Genesal Wadswonh's division of the northwest-
ern amy early in the fall of 1812, and marched
o Camp Avery on the Huron nver about six
miles fram the lake.  On Sahbath cvening, Scp-
tewnber 28th, a runner came Into camp with a dis-
patch from Sundusky bay stating that a company
of indians had landed on the peninsula, A eall
[or valunteers to proceed to that point was made
instanter, and some sixty or seventy responded,
Crawford amonyg the number. They were put
in cammand of Captain Cottan, and started for
their destination in the night. ‘They arrived at
Cedar Puing, on the bay, abont dayhght Monday
marning, crossed over the bay, and reached the
peninsula about sunrise.  On their way they had
been joined by others until they numberscd abou
nincty men. ‘l'bey then narched infand three
or four mules, and discovered satisfactory evi-
dence that there was a large number of Lodians
on the peninsula.

l‘or same reason they decided (o reteace their
way to the four bonts in which they had crossed,
which boais they had left in charge of cight
men.  They had not gone far on their retuming
march when Indians concealed in the high grass
began firing wpon them.  Captain Collon or-
dered his men into line of battle,.  Crawford
hastened to the captain and remaonstrated, telling
him that they would all be shat down o thus
exposed,  An otder was then issucd allowing
¢ach wan to do as he chose—* paddle bis awn
canue, Lake care of himsell and pick off 2 red-
skin at every aopportunity.”  The Gring was
 briskly kept up for a short time, then ceased, ap-
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pareatly by mutual consent. In this skirmish
three of the saldiers were killed and three
wounded. The dead were buried, and the
wounded cared for, then she march toward the
boats wasa again begun in goud order. ‘They
had procecded but a shont distance, however,
when the enemy again begun to fire upon them.
The fire was rewsrned with spirit and with good
cffect, every soldier taking care of himself as in
the previous encounter.  ‘The eaptain ordeced a
retreat. But Crawford and  his friend John
Burrell, another Caitsville man, were too eagerly
cnpgaged in the fight to hear the order.  While
concealed in the grass he noticed a movement
aneat him and creeping a little claser, saw an
Indian loading his gun. Crawfued fired and the
Indian lay stretched in death.  Presently another
savage was soen some distance uway, nearly con-
cealed from the soldier's sight by intervening
grass and a 1all weed near im.  Crawford fired ;
the weed doubled down and so did the Indian.

Burrell first nuticed that the company had re-
treated and notified Crawford of the fact, They
at once made haste to overtake their comrades
and soon came to a tangled pile of fallen timber,
at each end of which an Indian met them. Mr.
Crawford used to say that he never could tell
how he got aver those fallen trees, but he passed
them safely, and so did Burrell.  Soon they came
up with a soldier carrying his brother, who was
mortally wounded. They assisted him in car-

rying the dying man to a cabin whete they lifted |

up the floor, placed him bencath it and contin.
ved thein flight.  ‘They soon came to a house at
which Capuin Cotton and about half of his men
had balted ; the other half had gone en to the
boats, taking with them all of the wounded,
eight in number. On arriving at the shore they
found that the Indians had sunk twa of their
boats, whilc the men left on guard had taken the
other two and escaped, They, however, came

back, and the soldiers wete transferred 1o Cedar |

Point. The wounded were then placed in the
boats and sent op ta the camp which they
reached in safety, Tuesday Crawford said to
Burrell that he would as lief be shot by the In-
dians as starved to death, and as he had had no
food since the previous morning, he proposed Lo
reconooiter and see If some means of relief could
nat be discovered. Burrell accompanied him.
They went down tu the bay and discuvered an
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old canot concealed in the grass.  They inne
diately returned to thefr companions and old
them of their good fortune.  Two cxpenenced
men were selected to go down the bay in the
canae and give notice al the camp of their situ-
ativn. This plan succeeded adimably and in
due time reinforcements arrived with material
aid and all were brought off in safety.

HELIGIOUS ENCITEMENT.

A strange, mysterions visitation came opon
the Presbyterian chutches abowt (805—06. The
exciement is said to have onginated in Ken-
tucky and spread northward through western
Pennsylvania and nerthern Othio, agitating many
Preshytcrian congregations. Hopewell, one of
Rev. William Wick's charges, where inost of the
Coitsville puople attended church, was touched
by its influence. Its subjects were mostly young
people and generally females. They first be-
came excited in regard to their future stave ond
their condition here as sinners against Heaven
i the sight of God. Sobbings would convulse
them; spasmodic jerkings and twitchings then
ensucd; finally they f}l down prostratc and to
all appeasances unconscious.  [n this state they
would remain for & long time, but when the con.
gregation was dismissed they appeared to waken
and gain their vsual mind. At the time there
was great controversy as to the cause of these
remarkable occurrences, some holding that it
was the influcnce of the Holy Spirit, while others
held that it was the work of an evil spirit. Some
assigned mesmerism as a reason; others fanati-
cismn, But soon all traces of the excitement van-
ished to return no mose.

NOTES OF SETTLEMENT.

James Milligan was botn in county Tyrone,
Iieland, March 15, 1806, and came to
this country with his parents, John and Mar-
garet, when a lad of twelve years. ‘Three
brnthers, John, Dixon, and Robert, came also at
this ume. The oldest brather, William, re-
mained in Treland with his grandfather Milligan,
He was at length employed by 2 wealthy shipping
company a5 clesk, and afterwards taken into
partnership,  He died April z, 1882, baving
amassed a fortune of $2,000,000.  Divan settled
in the western pan of Ohio, where he became a
sucvessful physician.  He died in  February,
1874. Robert died in (875, M the tiwe of

d
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his dcath he was pramimneatly connected with the
Kentucky university.  He was the author of
several works on the Bille, and held a high
position as an cducator.  fohn lived a quict and
honorable life on the homestead, and died Janu-
ary, 1876.  lsabe), Thowas, and Samuel were
born after the lamily came (v America.  Janes
possessed a great memory, and the recollection
of his boyhoud days was very vivide  The voy-
age actoss the ocean was an intensely interesting
event Lo the keen Insh lad, and many were the
ancedotes e eoutd relate in connection with i,
The family settled in the northwest part of
Coitsville township abont two and one-half miles
from the present city of Youngstown. In 1826
James married Catharine, sister of William Mc-
Guffey, author of schuol readers bearing his
name, and afterwards engaged in the dry goods
business in Vicona,  He afterward returned to
his first place of residence, where he held the
office of justice of the peace for three terms. In
1848 he was clecied commissioner of Trombuli
He wasa Demoaat in politics, and an
influentinl member of the party.  He was an
active member af the Methodist  Fpiscopal
church, which he served in many capacities,  In
1830 his entire family was prostrated by 1yphoid
fuver, at which time his wife and two children,
Margarel and Alexander, died. The surviving
children were Isabel, John, Sarab, and  Mary,
He married again Nancy M. Reed, daughter
of William Reed. By this marriage there were
two sens, Dixen and Jamee.  He was o public.
spirited and influential wman, and his  death,
which vccurred March 3o, 1881, was sincerely
and widely lamented.

lohn Shiclds, Coitsville township, was born
September 3, 180y, His father, Jamnes, a native
af lreland, came tu the fam where Mr, Shields
now resides in 1802, trum Beaver county, 'enn-
sylvania  He was buen November 26, 1773,
dicd January 1q, 354 His wie, whom he
married in t502, was Margaret Walker, of Mer.
cer county, Peansybvanin,  She was born Octa
Ler v, 1783 dicd Fobouary g4 1852, They
brought up a faguly of cyebt children, of whowm
two sotis are oo bviag, Jubn and James  ‘The
latter, resides 1 Loveland, Colotado. A daugh-
ter, M Mary Davidson, of Coitsville, dicd
July 6, 1881, aged seventy cight years John
shickie was marricd in 18249 10 Sarah Dasidsan,

Coumty.

| of Youngstown, bwrn May 17, t80y,

They have
had four children, and the three sons are yet fv-
ing, each of their farms being near the old home-
stead.  Names of children: James Davidson,
born January 24, 1831; Ann Jane, June 5, 1834;
John Guailey, fune 15, 1843 Ambrose, Augost
18, 1849. Ann Jane died January 1y, 1868,
Mt, Shields and all of the family are Republic-
ans, lemperance men, and members of the
Unied I'tesbyterian church, Mr. Shields has
been honored by election to the following affices :
county commissioner, coroner, justice of the
jreace, postmaster, etc.  He has heen an elder in
his chuech for over forty years.  His vldest son,
one of our leading farmers, was married [ecem-
ber 12, 1865, Lo Mary Gilchrist, of Coitsville.
The other sons are also married. ). 1), Shields

. has a splendid fanin residence, and the best barn

m the towaship. ‘The Shiclds family is one of
activity and integrivy.

William Stewart was born in Coitsville, May
18, 1868, He is the son of William Stewart, a
natwe of Adams counly, Pennsylvania, who
came 10 this county previous to 1804, and settled
in the western part of Coitsville township, where
he lived and died, bringing up fve sons and
three daughters.  Four sons are «ill living, EH-
jab, Robut, Williany, and David,  Elijah resides
in DeKallh county, Hlinois; the others in this
township.  William Stewart, Sr., was one of six
brothers who came o the \Western Reserve
early times and settled in Trumbull and Mahon-
ing counties.  All brouglt up fomilies and lived
to be old.  Mr, Stewart, when eighteen yeass of
age, learned the business of tanning, in which
he is stitl engaged.  Hve established his tannery
at Coitsville in 1832, and is still doing business
there,  Tle marricd Jane Drownlee inm 1833
Four of their children are living: Mary E. (de-
ceased), Huldah, Motilla, David C, ond Flor
ence; Al marded except Huldab,  Mes, Stewarl
died i 1863, aged forty-cight years, She was a
devited member of the United Presbyterian
church for several years. Mr Siewart is well
and favorably known as a bLusiness man; has
held several township offices.

John & Hrownlee was born ot Turfoot, len.
wickshire, Scotland, March 6, 1806, He came
1w America i 1830, and settled in Coltsville
township, where he seill resides, in 1831 He
has a farm of vver two hundred acres and a very

[m
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pleasant and camfortable home.  Mr. Brownlee
was married April 19, 1810, to Janet Patterson,
who was born in Strathhaven, Scotland, Septem-
ber t1, t811. They have had eight children,
three of whom are living, Margares \V,, Ellen |,
Jane F., John A, james P, Randa) Scroges,
and Willintn W,  The second child, a daoghter,
died in infancy. Jane. Randall 8, and William
\V., are yet living.  Mr and M. Brownlee are
members of the Presbyterian churehe  They are
among the most respected citizens of Coitsville.

Robert Davidsan was born in Youngsiown In
1807. His father, James Davidson, a nasise of
treland, settled in Voungstawn previous to the
year 18oc.  He was married before coming to
the county 1o Margaret Croskery, a native of
Westmoreland  county,  Pennsylvania. They
brought up eleven children, cight of them  still
living, Robert Davidson being the fourth child.
Mr. Davidson hought the farm on which he naw
lives 1n 1831, and moved there the following
vear. He has been twice married- st in 1832
to Anna Shields, daughter of James Shields, une
of the fist settlers in Coitsville ; she died in
1833, In 1839 Mr. Davidson married Catha-
rine lLackey of lLawrence county, Pennsylvania,
They have three children, Anna, Mary, and
Francex  Mary is the wife of James Cowden,
of Wheeling, West Virginia, and Frances 15 the
wife of . C. Stewart of Coitsville.  Mr. and
Mis. Dawidson have belonged to the Unied
Preshywerian church for many years, Mr. David-
son has been an elder In this church for uver
forty years. He is a sound Republican and a
worthy citizen,

John H. Reed, farmer, was born 1n Coitsville
township in 1816, and has always resided here,
His parcnts, William and Martha Revd, were
among the eardy settlers They brought up a
family of Gve children, three of whom are hving,
viz: John, William, and Nancy (widow of James
Milligan), John H. Reed lives upon the farm
settled by his father. The farm contains at res-
ent onc hundred and sevemytwo acres. Nr
Reed was first married in 1838 10 Jane Kimmel,
daughter of Philip Kimmel, of Caitsville.  They

had svven children, three of whom are living: |

Lycurgus 5, born Scptember 22, 1839, died
March 14, 1864; Martha M., August 12, 1841,
died August 28, 1850; Philip K., July 4, 1843,
died July 19, 1859; William H., February 24,

1859; Susan W., April 20, 1853; Elzabeth T,
Edward I, {twins), fune 26, 1856, Elizabeth
died November 14, 1871; Mes, Reed died Feb-
ruary 24, 1862, In 1865 Mr. Reed married
Mrs. Samantha Mclarlin, daughter of William
McClelland, by whom he has two children: Al
thea, boen Apeil 23, 1863, and Pluma, June 20,
1866. Mr Reed is a Republican. He hag
held the office of tawnship trustee,  He does an
exeellent farming Lusiness

John F. Robison was barn in Mercer county,
(now Lawrence county) Penasylvania, February
17, 1829, He came to Mahoning county in 1833,
focating in Codtsville township.  He purchased
his present farm in 1863, has une hundred and
fiftcen acres in Coitsville, with good buildings
and improvements, and owns also seventy.six
acres with buildings, cte,, in Poland towaship,
He raiscs grain, cattle, sheep, etc.  Mr. Robison
was married March 25, 1854, to Hannah Me-
Williams, of Lawrence county, Pennsylvania,
They have six children, Almina, Ellen, George
1., William J., Elmer and Edward Lee {[wins),
and Auvdley (. Mr. and Mrs, Robison are
members of the Tresbyterian church.  Mr,
Robison 15 4 sound Democrat.

Anderson McFarhin, a descendant of some
of the very carliest settlers in the county, was
borm in Coitsville April 12, 182%, and has always
resided here.  He 1s the owner of a good farm
al one hundred and nincty acres situated near
the.center of the township.  Mr. McFarlin was
married Aptil 206, 1349, to Sarabh Kitk,  Mrs,
McFarlin s the daughter of Andrew and Eliza-
beth {Baldwin) Kirk, Andrew Kirk came at an
carly date from Washington county, Fennsyl
vania; he was onginally {rom New Jersey.  Eliz-
abeth Baldwin was the daughter of Caleb Rald-
win, onc of the first settlers in Youngstown
Mr. Mcladin is one of a family of twelve chik
dren, and  Mis, McFarkin the youngest of thir-
teen.  Their children are William E., Alice K.,
Vina J., Mary £ Bentie B, William K., Frank
M., Thomas 15, and Charles .\ William 1.
Alice K., and Charles A, are deceased.  Wiltinm
K. i1s now engaged on e new through-line
railroad in the capacity of eivil engineer.  Mr.
M Farlin bas been a Republican since the party
was formed.  He was postmaster at Caitsville
for seventeen years. The family are well known
and highly respected in this county.

jr
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Rotiert Lowry, Coitsville township, was born
in Paland township August 12, 1818 His
parents were Williarn and Mary (Houston) Low.
ry. Wiliam Lowry was a native of the north of
Ircland, who scttled in Poland township about
the year 1806, and brought np three sons and six
daughters; two sons and four daughters are now
living, llis wife, Mary [louston, of Scotch
parentage, was horn in Lancaster coumy, Penn-
sylvamia.  Her father, William Houston, came
to this county about the year 1800, Robert
Lowry was the fifth child of Wiliam Fowry, He
settled in Coitsville township in 1832. He was
married September 23, 1842, to Mavrgaret Stew-
arl, daughter of William Stewart, of Coisville
townshipn.  They had four children, all living:
Mary Jane, wile of I €. McBride, Mahoning
township, Lawrence county, Penasylvania ) Wil
liam &, Tulaski township, Lawrenee county,

Pennsylvania: Thewressa |, wife of J. W, Me-

Nabb, Pulaski township, Lawrence county,
Pennsylvania; Sarah L5, wife of W, S, Allen,
Coitsville township. Mis Lowry died July 3,
1873, aged Alty sis years.  Me Lowry was mar-
ricd a scecond  time May 18, 1876, to Miss
Amma Madge, daughter of Robert Madge, of
Lackawanna township, Mercer county, Tennsyl-
vania.  Mr and Mrs. 1.owry are mnembers of the
Umited Preshyterian church. M Towry is a
sound Republican.  He has held several offices:
was jnstice of the peace fur twelve consecutive
years, commencing in 1856. county commission.
er from 1866 to 1832, and has held several wwn.
ship offices.

I. M. Jackson was botn in New Bedford,
Pennsybvania, Augnst 5, 1828, His father, John
Jackson, settled in Coitsville township in 1803,
J. M. Jackson bas tollowed a variety of occupa-
tions.  When young he taught schonl fur several
years; then wias a merchant.  He now owns a
saw-mill, which does a guod hasiness, and is une
of our largest farmers.  Mr, Jackson settled in
Coitsville 1n 1804 From 1844 to that date he
had been in business in Trumbml! county. He
owns two hundeod and twenty acres in this town.
ship.  Min Jackson was mareied Mareh o, 1832,
to Kebeeon 1. Rabwrts, danghter of ‘Thomas N.
Roberts,  Hubbard, “Frembull  couny. They
have two sans and two daughters- Marieta,
Sidnev lamar (o successtal attorney in Y oungs-
town), Eliza Jane, and John Calvin,  Mr. Jack

son has been quite prominent In local affairs,
and has held the officas of justice of the peace,
county commissioner, township clerk, trustee,
¢te.  He is one of oor solid and energetic busi-
ness men.  Fe served in the army a short time
as captain m company C, One Hundred and Sev-
enty-first Ohio  voluntcers, enlisting April 28,
1864, for the one hundred days' service,

F. b Kirk, Coltsville township, was bom in
that township July 13, 1846. Hlis parents were
Andrew and Sylvina Kirk. His father is still
tiving. Mrs. Kuk died elght years ago.  Mr
F. P Kirk is one of our active farmers; has
ninety acres ot good land; raises stock, and in-
tends to go into sheep-raising. ln 1880 he re-
ceved over $150in premioms at fairs, mostly on
pgs.  Mr. Kirk was married, in 1869, to Miss
Alnita J. Bailey, daughter of C °I. Bailey, of
Cuaitsville 1ownship. They belong to the Mcthod:
st Fpascopal chorch,  Mr. Kirk is a Republi-
van, and a strong temperance man,  Fle was in
the army.  He enlisted in January, 1864, serv-
ing until the close of the war in company G,
Seventy-cighth 'ennsylvania volunteers, under
General ‘I'homas.

Nicholas Jacubs (deceased) was hom near Gi-
rard, Mahoning county, January 13, 1810, His
paremts were Abraham and Flizabeth (Kimimel)
Jacobs, who came here at quite an carly date,
After his birth they rewrned 0 Washington
county, Pennsylvania. In 1832 Abmham Ja-
vobs and his son Nicholas returned to Mahon-
ing county, and settled near together in the
northern pan of Coitsville township.  Nicholas
Jacobs was married Janvary 19, 1832, to Isabella
Brown, of Washington county, Pennsylvania,
They had two children, Lewis J. and Francis 1°,
hoth now residents of Youngstown. \rs. Ja-
cols died February 18, 1836, aged wenty-two
years,  Mr. Jacobs was again married Scptember
12, 1837, to Phuwebe Kirk, of Coitsville town-
ship, Six children: Sheldon, Charles, Louis,
{‘arolme, Alice and Pheche,  Chardes died in
the army, at Chattanooga, September 30, 1863,
aged twentytwu years.  Phache died Seprember
0, 1851, aged onc year. ‘Fhe others roside in
the county,  Mrs. Phebe Jacobs died April 11,
1850, aged thiny one.  His third wife, whum he
masried Ortober 1, 1850, was Mrs. Jaliana Cal-
vin, nee Driggs.  She was born in Dighton, Mas-
sachusetts, September 25, 1820, She was mar-
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ried in 1842 to Robert Calvin, of Beaver county,
Pennsylvinia, by whom she had wwo children,
Josephus and Gastavus ; the Iatter a resident of
this township, and Josephus of Mollidaysburg,
Pennsylvania.  Mr. Calvin died February 11,
1845, aged twenty.seven.  Mr and Mys. [acohs
had seven children: Mary, Spencer, Myron,
Jessie, Clarinda, William, and Charles (i, Jessie
died December 2, 1870, aged fourteen ; Clarinda
September 28, 1861, agedtwo, The others reside
in Coitsville enwnship.  Mr. Jacobs died 1lecem
ber 14, 1880, nearly seventy-one years of age.
He had been an earnest member of the Pisci.
ples’ church for about forty years of his hie.
tle was well known in this county, and highly

respected.

Andrew Garner Fitch came o this coontly
from lebanon, Connectient, and settled in the
western pant of Coitsville township, on a farm
which bad been taken up previonsly and some-
what improved by a man named Robinson, His
wife was Mary Levenwell, They had nine chil-
dren, none of thews now living. Samel Fich
was the fifth child, and the longest survivor of
the family. He was twelve years of age when
he came to the county, having heen born in
t739. Samuel Fitch and his brothe Henry
were soldiess in the War of 1812, The wife of

Samuel Fitch was Mary T Simpson, a native of |

Maysville, Kentucky, ‘They had five children,
Mary Jane, Elizabeth B., Julia A, Joseph T,
and Caroline S, Only Elizabeth and Julia are
now living. They reside at the old hamestend,
Mrs. Fitch, their mother, died in 1848, aged
fify-two years. She was for many years a devaot-
ed member of the Presbyterian charch.  Mr.
Fitch died in 1875. He lived to a ripe old age,
and was always an honored and respected citl-
zen, He was an earncst friend of the Union,
and though he had na sons to send ta the army,
he gave liberally of lus means to aid in the
canse

John Cooper, lumber manufactures, Coitsville
township, was born September 1g, 815, His
parents were David and Rebecca (Armstrong)
Cooper, the (ormer a native of Maryland, and
the latter of Washington connty, Pennsylvania.
David Cuoper came to Caitsville in 1798 and
belped to survey the Western Reserve. He

then went back 0 Maryland, and in 1800 re-
turned ta Coitsville, ook up fanr hundred acres, |

0n*

and spent the remainder of his life here.  He
died in 1853 in the ninety-fifth year of his age.
He was a man of strong constitution, active
industry, and business ability, He was married
about the vear 1866, and was the father of
twelve children @ eleven armived at maturity and
five are yet living, viz: John, David, Llaa,
William, and Robert, all residents of Coitaville
township.  Mrs. Cooper died in 1852 aged sixty-
six years, fohn Cooper lives upion a portion of
the original farm, He is engaged in the lumber
business and has been cunning a sawmil! since
1849. The Cooper family is one of the oldest
in the township, and comprises some ol its best
citizens

Joim White, farmer, Coitsville township, Ma-
honing county, was horn in county Monaghn,
Ireland, in 1830,  He came ta America in 1835,
and after three or four years settled in Coitsville.
Mr. White is a large farmer; he has at present
two hundred and seventysix acres of land in 2
goud sate of cultivation.  He built a large and
conveniemt house in the spring of 1897, M.,
Whate is engaged in mixed farming, raises cattle,
sheep, and gain, He was murried November
23, 1853, o Eliza Dickson, duughter of George
Dickson, of Coitsville township.  They have five
children, bom as follows: Hugh J., November
11, 1354; George 1), November 4, 1856; Wil
ham B., December 22, 1858; John B., October
24, t860; Robert F., February 2z, 1863.  Mr.
and Mrs \White are members of the Preshyterian
church, Mr. \WWhite i5s 2 Democrat. He has
been township teustee and Judge of elections,
and is 2 most warthy and respected cltizen.

William H. Wik, (armer, Coilsville, Mahon-
ing county, was born in this township in 1829,
His parenis, Damel and Elizaheth (Armitage)
Wick, were old residents, having come 1o the
place where Mr. Wick now resides in 18¢g.
Danicl Wick had previously heen a resident of
Austintown, having come there from New Jersey
abont 1796, He was a soldier in the War of
t812, He died June 18, 1863, in his seventy-
seventh vear. His wife, Elizheth Armivage,
whom he married in 1813, was harn in Hunting-
den connty, Pennsylvania, and came (o fackson
township, Mahoning county, when a child.  She
was A danghter of Benjamin Armitaze. Her
mother's name was rake, a descendant from
Sir Francis Drake.  Mre Wick died February



5, 186g, aged scveniy-six years. She was the
mother of six children, all of whom are living,
Mr, W, H. Wick being the yvoungest, William
H. Wick was married March 7, 3853, to Sarah
A, Williams, daughter of Willtam Wilitams, of
Wayne county, Ohio.  They have five children;
Mary Elia Pearl, born Maich 5, 1859, wife of
Albert Martin of Lawrence county, Peonsylvania ;
Louie Evangeline, born May g, 1860; Lizzie
Carrie, born August 3t, 1865; Cirace Dertrude,
born  March 3, 186g; Vernon Vicrtor, born
May 21, 1876, Mr, Wick has always heen a
stanch  Republican,  He has been township
trustee, and bas held olther local offices. e
does an extensive farming business, owns one
hundred and eighty actes; and s one of the

most active and successful Barmers i the town- |

ship





